
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Transport and Environment,  
Councillor Nick Bennett 
 
MONDAY, 20 MAY 2019 AT 10.00 AM  
 
COMMITTEE ROOM - COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
AGENDA 
 
1   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 18 March 2019  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2   Disclosure of Interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct.  
 

3   Urgent items   
Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda.  
 

4   Implementation of the Well Managed Highway Infrastructure Code of Practice   
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
 

5   Statement of Common Ground on Soft Sand between Kent County Council, West 
Sussex County Council, East Sussex County Council, Brighton & Hove City Council 
and the South Downs National Park Authority  (Pages 5 - 6) 
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport  
 

6   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 10 May 2019 
 
Contact Simon Bailey, Democratic Services Officer,  
01273 481935 
Email: simon.bailey@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT 
 
DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Transport and Environment, Councillor Nick 
Bennett, on 18 March 2019 at County Hall, Lewes  
 

 
Councillor Ungar spoke on item 5 (see minute 45) 
 
 
42 DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 11 FEBRUARY 2019  
 
42.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 11 
February 2019.  
 
 
43 REPORTS  
 
43.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book. 
 
 
44 CAPITAL PROGRAMME FOR LOCAL TRANSPORT IMPROVEMENTS 2019/20  
 
44.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport.   
 
DECISIONS  
 
44.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to (1) agree the programme of local transport 
improvements for 2019/20 set out in Appendix 1 to this report; and  
 
(2) agree the allocation of County Council capital funding, development contributions and Local 
Growth Fund monies towards specific improvements identified in the 2019/20 programme.    
 
Reasons  
 
44.3 The programme set out in Appendix 1 of the report represents a balanced programme of 
improvements which will help deliver not only the objectives of the County Council’s local 
Transport Plan but also contribute to achieving broader corporate objectives.   
 
 
45 VICTORIA DRIVE, EASTBOURNE UPGRADE TO EXISTING PEDESTRIAN 
CROSSINGS  
 
45.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport.  
 
DECISIONS  
 
45.2 The Lead Member  RESOLVED to (1) note the comments from the local consultation; 
and  
 
(2) approve the proposal to upgrade the pedestrian crossings in Victoria Drive as set out in the 
report as part of the 2019/20 Capital Programme for Local Transport Improvements.   
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
 
 

 

Reasons  
 
45.3  The road safety and accessibility improvements that the enhanced zebra crossings will 
bring to the local community, and the majority support for the proposals, outweigh the objections 
that were received during the public consultation.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 
Report to:  Lead Member for Transport and Environment 

 

Date of meeting: 20 May 2019 
 

By: Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
 

Title: Statement of Common Ground (SoCG) on Soft Sand between Kent 
County Council, West Sussex County Council, East Sussex County 
Council, Brighton & Hove City Council and the South Downs National 
Park Authority 
 

Purpose: To seek Member agreement to sign a SoCG between Kent County 
Council, East Sussex County Council and other neighbouring 
mineral planning authorities (mpas).  

  

 

RECOMMENDATION: To authorise the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport to 
sign the Kent soft sand Statement of Common Ground and review/update and agree to 
amendments to it as necessary.  

 
 

1. Background Information 
 

1.1 East Sussex County Council (ESCC) as minerals planning authority (mpa) is required to plan for 
a steady and adequate supply of aggregates (sand and gravel) to serve the constructional needs of 
the area. ESCC works jointly with Brighton & Hove City Council (B&HCC) and the South Downs 
National Park Authority (SDNPA) to prepare waste and minerals planning policies. Policies for 
aggregates provision are contained in the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste 
and Minerals Plan 2013 (WMP) and the corresponding Sites Plan adopted in 2017.  These plans 
together make up the Waste and Mineral Local Plan (WMLP) which is currently being reviewed.  
Consultation on a draft Review document (Regulation 18) is anticipated early this autumn. 
 

1.2 In accordance with national policy, ESCC also participates in the operation of the South East 
England Aggregate Working Party (SEEAWP), which is made up of mpas in the South-East area. 
Section 110 of the Localism Act sets out a “Duty to Cooperate” (DtC) under which planning 
authorities are required to engage constructively, actively, and on an ongoing basis where there are 
significant cross-boundary issues, such as the supply of minerals. Involvement in SEEAWP is 
therefore important for the County Council in meeting DtC requirements. 
 

1.3 The emphasis on DtC measures was strengthened last year by the revised National Planning 
Policy Framework which now requires strategic policy-making authorities “to prepare and maintain 
one or more statements of common ground (SoCG), documenting the cross-boundary matters being 
addressed and progress in cooperating to address these.”  Planning authorities are required to 
include SoCGs at the time of Plan submission to the Secretary of State.  In the case of Minerals 
Plans, National guidance requires that the relevant Aggregate Working Party should be treated as 
an additional signatory to a SoCG. 
 

1.4 In 2016 Kent County Council (KCC) adopted its Minerals and Waste Local Plan.  KCC is now 
preparing a subsequent Minerals Sites Plan which has been subject to consultation during the plan 
preparation process. The Kent Plan includes provision of aggregate minerals, including a site 
allocation for the supply of soft sand. KCC have invited ESCC, B&HCC, SDNPA and West Sussex 
County Council (WSCC) to participate in a SoCG covering soft sand which is to be submitted along 
with the Kent Minerals Site Plan.   
 

2. Supporting Information 
 

Soft sand 
2.1 Soft sand (also known as building sand) is an important aggregate mineral used specifically in 
building mortar and asphalt by the construction industry.  For certain end uses it cannot be 
substituted by other materials.  Soft sand is extracted in some, but not all, of the mpa areas in the 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



South East and has historically been extracted from three geological formations. One of these, the 
Folkestone Formation, extends across Kent, Surrey, Hampshire, West Sussex and East Sussex.  
 

2.2 The outcrop of the sand deposit is very limited, and in the western part of East Sussex consists 
of a narrow strip, which is exclusively located in the SDNP. Within this area there is one extraction 
site (Stanton’s Farm Quarry) that has not been active for at least 5 years. This has meant that the 
supply of soft sand in East Sussex has been entirely met with imports over this time.  Imports have 
included material quarried in Kent, West Sussex and Surrey. The WMLP Review will consider the 
continuing supply of soft sand; however the ability to identify additional further resources in the Plan 
area will be affected by its limited extent and the National Park designation.   
 

Kent Minerals Sites Plan 
2.3 The draft Kent Minerals Sites Plan recognises the role that soft sand originating from Kent plays 
in the South East of England.  In 2018 the first draft Plan identified two potential soft sand sites 
which it was stated could provide a surplus to Kent’s needs to help meet increasing demand in other 
areas and for exports.  At that time ESCC strongly supported the allocations which, in the absence 
of sources within East Sussex, could have enabled imports of soft sand to continue. However, the 
proposed submission Plan published in January this year, included only one allocated soft sand site.  
ESCC has therefore objected to the Kent Plan on the basis that it does not provide sufficient soft 
sand resources for the wider area.  This representation will be considered further at the Independent 
Examination Hearing into the Plan later this year. 
 

SOCG 
2.4 Not withstanding representations received on their Plan, KCC have engaged with ESCC, 
WSCC, SDNPA and B&HCC to prepare a SoCG to identify areas where all mpas can agree on the 
provision of soft sand.  Officers from all authorities have attended meetings and worked thoroughly 
to establish a statement that is acceptable in principle to all parties.  The draft SoCG (see Appendix 
1) sets out each mpa’s situation with regard to soft sand reserves and concludes with a list of 
agreed positions by the Parties. The SoCG is factual and does not propose areas of new policy. 
 

2.5 The draft SoCG was reported to SEEAWP on 9 April 2019.  At that meeting members were 
unable to come to an overall view and more time has been given for comments to be received by 
the Chair.  SoCGs are considered to be “living documents” and so can be amended if necessary 
after plan submission to record any further DtC involvements.  
 

3. Conclusion and reasons for Recommendations 
 

3.1 The draft Kent SoCG is a welcome collaborative attempt to identify common areas of agreement 
regarding supply issues of an important construction mineral. Apart from assisting KCC in their Plan 
making process and DtC obligations, participating in the preparation of this joint statement on soft 
sand also helps ESCC provide an agreed evidence base for the WMP Review. The measures set 
out in the SoCG do not conflict with existing policies and will assist in future working with the other 
SoCG parties. The Lead Member is therefore recommended to authorise the Director of 
Communities, Economy and Transport (CET) to sign the SoCG, and delegate authority to the 
Director of CET to review/update and agree amendments to this SoCG as considered necessary in 
the future. 
 
RUPERT CLUBB 
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
 
Contact Officer: Pat Randall 
Tel. No. 01273 336310 
Email: pat.randall@eastsussex.gov.uk 
 
LOCAL MEMBERS 
All 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
None 
 
 

 

Page 6

mailto:pat.randall@eastsussex.gov.uk

	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 18 March 2019
	5 Statement of Common Ground on Soft Sand between Kent County Council, West Sussex County Council, East Sussex County Council, Brighton & Hove City Council and the South Downs National Park Authority

